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TIME WARNER TELECOM OF FLORIDA, L*Pe REPQNSE TO MOTION OF 
VERIZON FLORIDA INC. TO DISMISS COMPLAINT FOR LACK OF 

JURISDICTION, OR IN THE ALTERNATIW, TO STAY ALL PROCEEDINGS 
PENDING THE DECISION OF THE UNITED STATES SUPREME COURT IN 

VEHZON MARYLAND INC. V .  PUBLIC SERWCE COMMISSION OF MARYLANlD INC. 

Comes now, Time Warner Telecom of Florida, L.P. (“TWTC”), through its undersigned 

counsel, and submits this Response to Motion of Verizon Florida Inc. to Dismiss Complaint for Lack 

of Jurisdiction, or in the Alternative, to Stay all Proceedings Pending the Decision of the United States 

Supreme Court in Verizon Maryland Inc. v. Public Service Commission of Maryland Inc. In support 

of its Motion, Verizon Florida Inc. (“Verizon”) claims that this Commission lacks authority under 

federal and state law to adjudicate the parties’ interconnection agreement. However, the Florida 

Public Service Commission (“Commission”) is an administrative agency vested with the authority to 

adjudicate matters of this type and, therefore, jurisdiction is proper before this agency. 

I. Federal Law Confers Jurisdiction Upon the Commission 

Section 252(e)( 1) of the Telecommunications Act of 1996 grants state commissions authority 

to approve or reject an interconnection agreement. While the power to approve or reject 

interconnection agreements implicitly authorizes state commissions to interpret and enforce 

agreements, the statute is silent as to whether state commissions are specifically vested with authority 

to do so. 
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However, this issue was presented to the Supreme Court in the recent case of Verizon 

Maryland Inc. v. Public Service Commission of Maryland Inc., 122 S.Ct. 1753 (2002), full text 

available at 2002WL 1008485, a copy of which is attached hereto. In Verizon MuryZutd, the parties, 

including Verizon and the United States, agreed that a state commission's authority under $252(e) 

implicitly encompasses the authority to interpret and enforce interconnection agreements previously 

approved by a state commission. Verizon Maryland at *4. The Court, however, declined to answer 

the question as to whether state commissions have authority under federal law to interpret and enforce 

interconnection agreements, ruling instead that 28 U.S.C. $ 133 1 confers jurisdiction on federal courts 

to review state commission rulings. Id. In its motion, Verizon argues that the case should be stayed 

pending resolution of the Verizun Mayland case. This argument is now moot because the Supreme 

Court issued its decision on May 20, 2002. 

To date, this issue has not been squarely addressed nor resolved in the Florida courts. Other 

courts have acknowledged, however, that federal law confers authority on state commissions to 

interpret and enforce interconnection agreements. For example, the Tenth Circuit concluded that 

state courts have authority to review state commission decisions interpreting and enforcing 

interconnection agreements under the Telecommunications Act. See U. S. West Communications, Im. 

v. Sprint Communications Co., L.P., 275 F.3d 1241 (lo* Cir. 2002). The Fourth Circuit appears to 

agree that state utilities commissions are authorized to interpret and enforce interconnection 

agreements as well. See Bellsouth Telecommunicatiuns, Inc. v. North Carolina Utilities Com '12,240 

F.3d 270 (4* Cir. 2001). In fact, a number of District Courts have determined that state utilities 

commissions are vested with the power to interpret and enforce interconnection agreements. See 

Southwestern Bell Telephone Co. v. Connect Communications Corp., 225 F.3d 942 (8" Cir. 2000.); 

Southwestern Bell Telephone Co. v. Public Utility Com'n of Texas, 208 F.3d 475 (5" Cir. 2000); and 

Illinois Bell Telephone Co. v. WorldCom T e c h  Inc., 179 F.3d 566 (7" Cir. 1999). Other circuits 
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have refused to rule on this issue. See Puerto Rico Telephone Co. v. Telecommunications Regulamy 

Bd. of Puerto Rim, 189 F.3d 1 ( lSt Cir. 1999). While this commission is not bound by the decisions 

from other circuit courts, these decisions are persuasive authority. 

11. 

If this Commission determines that federal law does not authorize the Commission to interpret 

and enforce interconnection agreements, Florida state law grants such authority. Verizon claims that 

state law does not confer such authority on the Commission, and cites the Eleventh Circuit decision, 

BellSouth TeZecommunications, Inc. v. MCIMetro Access Transmission Services, Inc., 278 F.3d. 1223 

(I l* Cir. 2002). In finding that the Georgia Public Service Commission lacked such authority under 

Georgia state law, the Court of Appeals concluded that the quasi-legislative body was not equipped 

with the expertise to adjudicate such issues. MCIMetro at 1240. However, approximately one month 

after the decision, the Northern District of Florida expressly concluded that under Florida law the 

Commission is an administrative agency with proper authority and knowledge to adjudicate issues 

surrounding interconnection agreements. BellSouth Telecommunication, hc. v. Vartec Telecom, Inc., 

185 F.Supp.2d 1280,1283 (N.D. Florida 2002). 

State Law Confers Jurisdiction Upon This Commission 

The Court in Vartec further concluded that the Florida Legislature gave the Florida Public 

Service Commission authority to resolve disputes between carriers under $364.07, Florida Statutes 

(2001). Id. at 1285 (stating that Georgia did not have a statutory counterpart to 5364.07). The Florida 

legislature, the Court stated, specifically created an administrative remedy before decision makers who 

are experts in the field of telecommunications and such authority to hear and resolve 

telecommunications issues should rest with this Commission. Id. at 1284. The Court further 

acknowledged that to deny the Commission this authority “would be a bold and bizarre reading of the 

removal statute that attributed to Congress an intent to foreclose a state from implementing such an 
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administrative remedy whenever federal jurisdiction would exist over a civil action raising the same 

claim in court.” Id. 

In the case at issue, TWTC elected an administrative remedy before this commission, not a 

civil action in court.’ Such an election should not be denied because concurrent jurisdiction may exist 

in another forum. 

This Commission is granted authority through federal and state law to interpret and enforce 

interconnection agreements that it approves or rejects. Therefore, Verizon’ s motion to dismiss should 

be denied. 

Respectfully submitted, 

R M. bUNBAR, ESQ. 

FWN M. CAMECHIS, ESQ. 
Ha. Bar No. 0898104 
Pennington, Moore, Wilkinson, 
Bell & Dunbar, P.A. 

Post Office Box 10095 
Tallahassee, Florida 32302-2095 
(850) 222-3533 
(850) 222-2126 (fax) 

Charles B. Welch, Jr. 
Farris Mathews Branan Bobango & Hellen, PLC 
618 Church St., Suite 300 
Nashville, TN 37219 
(615) 726-1200 

Attorneys for Time Warner Telecom of Florida, LJP 

1 Paragraph 1 of TWTC Complaint states, “This is an administrative action to enforce the terms of 
the Interconnection Agreement, previously approved by this Commission.” 
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Supreme Court of the United States 
E!# 

VEMZON MARYLAND INC., Petitioner, 

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMTSSION OF 
MARYLAND et al. 

United States, Petitioner, 

Public Service Commission of Maryland et al. 

V. 

V. 

NOS. 01-1531,OO-1711. 

Argued Dec. 5,2001. 
Decided May 20,2002. TE;N*~ 

- FN* Together witb No. 00-1711, United 
States v. Public Sewice Commission of 
Maryland et d., also on certiorari to the 
same court. 

Incumbent local exchange carrier (LEO filed action 
against the Public Service Commission of Maryland, 
its individual members in their official capacities, and 
other parties to an interconnection agreement, 
seeking review of a decision by the Commission on 
reciprocal-compensation rights under the agreement. 
The United States District Court for the District of 
Maryland, Frederic N. Snaalkin, J., dismissed the 
action, and incumbent LEC appealed. The United 
States Court of Appeals for the Fourth Circuit, 
F.3d 279, affirmed, and certiorari was granted. The 
Supreme C O G  Justice Scalia, held that: (I) LEC's 
claim fell under general federal-question jurisdiction, 
and (2) doctrine of Ex Parte Youny permitted LEC's 
suit seeking injunctive relief against state 
commissioners in their official capacities. 

Vacated and remanded. 

Justice Kennedy filed a concurring opinion. 

Justice Souter files a concurring opinion in which 
Justices Ginsburg and Breyer joined. 

Justice O'Connor did not participate in the 
consideration or the decision. 

Federal Courts -99 

Incumbent local exchange carrier's (LEC) claim that 
Maryland Public Service Commission violated the 
Telecommunications Act of 1996 and a Federal 
Communications Commission (FCC) ruling when the 
Commission ordered payment of reciprocal 
compensation for Intemet Service Provider (ISP) 
bound calls, fell under general federal-question 
jurisdiction, since nothing in the Act stripped federal 
court of jurisdiction, despite the provision of Act 
providing for limited grant of federal jurisdiction 
with respect to review of determinations of state 
commissions as to whether interconnection 
agreements meet requirements of tbe Act. 2 
U.S.C.A. 6 1331; Communications Act of 1934, 8 
252 (e)(6), as amended, 47 U.S.C.A. 6 252(e)tm. 

f21 Federal Courts -269 
170Bk269 Most Cited Cases 

Federal Courts -272 
170Bk272 Most Cited Cases 

In determining whether the doctrine of Ex parte 
Young avoids an Eleventh Amendment bar to suit, a 
federal court need only conduct a straightforward 
inquiry into whether the complaint alleges an 
ongoing violation of federal law and seeks relief 
properly characterized as prospective. U.S.C.A. 
Const.Amend. 11. 

a Federal Courts -269 
170Bk269 Most Cited Cases 

Federal Courts -272 
170Bk272 Most Cited Cases 

Doctrine of Ex- permitted incumbent 
local exchange carrier's (LEC) suit against Maryland 
Public Service Commission, seeking injunctive refief 
against state commissioners in their official 
capacities on ground that Commission's order 
requiring payment of reciprocal compensation for 
Internet Service Provider (ISP) bound calls violated 
the Telecommunications Act of 1996, since me's 
prayer for injunctive relief, that state officials be 
restrained from enforcing an order in contravention 
of controlling federal law, allowed c o m  to make a 
straightforward inquiry into whether there was an 
ongoing violation of federal law. U.S.C.A. 
Const.Amend. 11; Communications Act of 1934, 0 
251(c)(2), as amended, 47 U.S.C.G 6 251(cM2). 

I70Bkl99 Most Cited Cases c41 Federal Courts -269 
170Bk269 Most Cited Cases 
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M. Federal Courts -72 
170Bk272 Most Cited Cases 
Judgments. 

Inquiry into whether suit lies under ET vam Yoring 
docline does not include an analysis of the merits of 
the claim. W.S.C.A. Const.Amend. 1 1. 

Syllabus JFN*I 

- FN* The syllabus constitutes no part of the 
opinion of the Court but has been prepared 
by the Reporter of Decisions for the 
convenience of the reader. See Unied States 
v. Detroir Timber & Lumber Co., 200 US. 
321,337.26 S.Ct. 282,50 L.Ed. 499. 

"1 The Telecommunications Act of 1996(Act) 
requires that incumbent local- exchange carriers 
(LECs) "provide ... interconnection with" their 
existing networks when a new entrant seeks access to 
a market, 47 U.S.C. 8 251(cM2); that the carriers 
then establish "reciprocal compensation 
arrangements" for transporting and terminating the 
calls of each others' customers, 3 25 1 fiMSl; and that 
their interconnection agreements be submitted to a 
state utility commission for approval, 3 252(eMll. 
Petitioner Verizon Maryland Inc., the incumbent 
LEC in Maryland, negotiated an interconnection 
agreement with a competitor later acquired by 
respondent MCI WorldCom, Inc. After the Maryland 
Public Service Commission (Commission) approved 
the agreement, Verizon informed WorIdCom that it 
would no longer pay reciprocal compensation for 
calls made by Verizon's customers to the local access 
numbers of Internet Service Providers (ISPs) because 
ISP traf5c was not "local traffic" subject to the 
reciprocal compensation agreement. WorldCom fded 
a complaint with the Commission, which ordered 
Verizon to make the payments for past and future 
ISP- bound calls. Verizon then filed an action in 
federal district court, citing 3 2521eM6) and 28 
U.S.C. 6 1331 as the basis for jurisdiction, and 
naming as defendants the Commission, its individual 
members in their official capacities, WorldCom, and 
other competing.LECs. Verizon sought a declaratory 
judgment that the order was unlawfid and an 
injunction prohibiting its enforcement, alleging that 
the determination that Verizon must pay reciprocal 
compensation for ISP traffic violated the 1996 Act 
and a Federal Communications Commission ruling. 
The District Court dismissed the action. The Fourth 
Circuit affkmed, holding that the Commission had 
not waived its Eleventh Amendment irnmunity from 

suit; that the doctrine of Ex parte Young. 209 U.S. 
123,28 S.Ct. 441.52 L.Ed. 714. does not pennit suit 
against the individual commissioners in their official 
capacities; and that neither 3 252(eM6) nor 8 1331 
provides a basis for jurisdiction over Verizon's claims 
against the private defendants. 

Held: 

1. Section 1331 provides a basis for jurisdiction over 
Verizon's claim that tbe Commission's order 
requiring reciprocal compensation for ISP-bound 
calls is pre-empted by federal law. Federal courts 
have jurisdiction under 8 1331 where the petitioner's 
right to recover will be sustained if federal law is 
given one construction and will be defeated if it is 
given another, unless the claim clearly appears to be 
immaterial and made solely to obtain jurisdiction, or 
is wholly insubstantial and frivolous. Steel Co. v. 
Citizens for Better Environment. 523 U.S. 83. 89.118 
S.Ct. 1003, 140 L.Ed.2d 210. Here, resolution of 
Verizon's claim t u n s  on whether the Act, or an FCC 
ruling, precludes the Commission from ordering 
payment of reciprocal compensation, and there is no 
suggestion that the claim is immaterial or 
insubstantial and ftivolous. Even if 3 252(eM61 
(which provides that a party aggrieved by a State 
commission's determination under section 252 may 
bring a federal action to determine whether an 
interconnection agreement meets the requirements of 
5 4 251 and 252) does not confer jurisdiction, it does 
not divest the district courts of their authority under 5 
__. 1331. Cf. Abbott Laboratories v. Gardner, 387 US. 
136, 141.87 S.Ct. 1507. 18 L.Ed.2d 681. Section 252 
does not establish a distinctive review mechanism for 
the commission actions that it covers, and it does not 
distinctively limit the substantive relief available. 
Finally, none of the Act's other provisions evince any 
intent to preclude federal review of a commission 
determination. Pp. ---- - ---- 4-43. 

2. The doctrine of permits Verizon's 
suit to go forward against the state commissioners in 
their official capacities. The Court thus need not 
decide whether the Commission waived its immunity 
from suit by voluntarily participating in the 
regulatory regime established by the Act. In 
determining whether the Ex oarte Younn doctrine 
avoids an Eleventh Amendment bar to suit, a court 
need only conduct a "straightforward inquiry" into 
whether the complaint alleges an ongoing violation of 
federal law and seeks relief properly characterized as 
prospective. Idaho v. Coeur d'Alene Tribe qf Idaho, 

L.M.2d 438. Here, Verizon's prayer for injunctive 
521 US. 261, 296, 298-299, 117 S.Ct. 2028. 138 
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relief--that state officials be restrained from enforcing 
an order in contravention of controlling federal law- 
clearly satisfies our "straightforward inquiry." As for 
Verizon's prayer for declaratory relief, even though 
Verizon seeks a declaration of the past, as well as the 
future, ineffectiveness of the Commission's action, so 
that the private parties' past fmancial liability may be 
afYected, no past liability of the State, or of any of its 
commissioners, is at issue, see Edelmun v. Jordan, 
415 US. 651. 668. 94 S . C t .  1347. 39 L.Ed.2d 662. 
The Fourth Circuit's suggestion that the doctrine of 
Ex parte Younq is inapplicable because the 
Co&ssionts order was probably not inconsistent 
with federal law is unavailing: The inquiry into 
whether suit lies under Ex parte Young does not 
include an analysis of the merits of the claim, see 
Coeur d'AZene, supra, at 281. 117 SCt. 2028. Nor is 
there any merit to the Commission's argument that 5 
252(eM) constitutes a detailed and exclusive 
remedid scheme like the one held in Seminole Tribe 
of Fla. 17. Florida 517 US. 44, 75. 116 S.Ct. 1114, 
134 L.Ed.2d 252, to implicitly exclude Ex parte 
Youna actions. Pp. -- - ---- 8-12. 

"2 240 F.3d 279, vacated and remanded. 

SCALJA, J., delivered the opinion of the Court, in 
which all other Members joined, except O'CONNOR, 
J., who took no part in the consideration or decision 
of the cases. KENNEDY, J., filed a concuning 
opinion. SOUTER, J., filed a concllrring opinion, in 
which GINSBURG and BWYER, JJ., joined. 

Mark L. Evans, for petitioner in No. 00-1531. 

Barbara B. McDowell, for petitioner in No. 00-171 1. 

Susan S .  Miller, for state respondent. 

Justice SCALIA delivered the opinion of the Court. 

"3 These cases present the question whether federd 
district courts have jurisdiction over a 
telecommunication carrier's claim that the order of a 
state utility commission requiring reciprocal 
compensation for telephone calls to Internet Service 
Providers violates federal law. 

I 

The Telecommunications Act of 1996 (1996 Act or 
Act), Pub.L. 104-104, 110 Stat. 56, created a new 
telecommunications regime designed to foster 

competition in local telephone markets. Toward that 
end, the Act imposed various obligations on 
incumbent local-exchange carriers (LECs), including 
a duty to share their networks with competitors. See 
47 U.S.C. 8 251(c) (1994 ed., SUDP. Q. When a new 
entrant seeks access to a market, the incumbent LEC 
must "provide ... interconnection with" the 
incumbent's existing network, 4 25l(cX2), and the 
carriers must then establish "reciprocal compensation 
arrangements" for transporting and terminating the 
calls placed by each others' customers, 5 251(b1(5>. 
As we have previously described, see AT & T Com. 
v. Iowa Utilities Bd., 525 US. 366, 371-373, 119 
S.Ct. 721, 142 L.Ed.2d 835 (1999), m incumbent 
LEC "may negotiate and enter into a binding 
agreement" with the new entrant "to fulfill the duties" 
imposed by 3 4 251cO) and (c), but "without regard 
to the standards set forth" in those provisions. 
252CaMl), 251(c)(I). That agreement must be 
submitted to the state commission for approval, 8 
2521eM12 which may reject it if it discriminates 
against a canier not a party or is not consistent with 
"the public interest, convenience, and necessity," 5 
2521eX2)CA). 

As required by the Act, the incumbent LEC in 
Maryland, petitioner Verizon Maryland hc., 
formerly h o w n  as Bell Atlatic Maryland, Inc., 
negotiated an interconnection agreement with 
competitors, induding MFS htelenet of Maryland, 
later acquired by respondent MCI WorldCom, Inc. 
The Maryland Public Service Commission 
(Commission) approved the agreement. Six months 
later, Verizon informed WorldCom that it  would no 
longer pay reciprocal compensation for telephone 
calls made by Verizon's customers to the local access 
numbers of Internet Service Providers USPs), . 
claiming that ISP traffic was not "local traffic" 
jFN11 subject to the reciprocal compensation 
agreement because ISPs connect customers to distant 
Web sites. WorldCom disputed Verizon's claim and 
filed a complaint with the Commission. The 
Commission found in favor of WorldCom, ordering 
Verizon "to timely forward all future interconnection 
payments owed [WorldCom] for telephone calls 
placed to an ISPI and to pay WorldCom any 
reciprocal compensation that it had withheld pending 
resolution of the dispute. Verizon appealed to a 
Maryland state court, which affirmed the order. 

- FN1. Section 1.61 of the interconnection 
agreement provides: " Reciprocal 
Compensation' is As Described in the Act, 
and refers to the payment arrangements that 
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recover costs incurred for the transport and 
termination of Local Traffic originating on 
one Party's network and terminating on the 
other Party's network.'' In turn, 9 1.44 
defmes " 'Local Traffic' " as "traffic that is 
originated by a Customer of one Party on 
that Party's network and terminates to a 
Customer of the other Party on that other 
Party's network, within a given local calling 
area, or expanded area service (EAS') area, 
as defined in [Bell Atlantic's] effective 
Customer tariffs. b c a l  Traffic does not 
include traffk originated or terminated by a 
commercial mobile radio service carrier.'' 

Subsequently, the Federal Communications 
Commission (FCC) issued a ruling- later vacated by 
the Court pf Appeals for the D.C. Circuit, see =E 
Atlamic Tel. Cos. v. FCC. 206 E3d 1 
JC.A.D.C.20001-which categorized ISP- bound calls 
as nonlocal for purposes of reciprocal compensation 
but concluded that, absent a federal compensation 
mechanism for those calls, state commissions could 
construe interconnection agreements as requiring 
reciprocal compensation. Verizon filed a new 
complaint with the Commission, arguing that the 
FCC ruling established that Verizon was no longer 
required to provide reciprocal compensation for ISP 
traffic. In a 340-2 decision, the Commission rejected 
this contention, concluding that, as a matter of state 
contract law, WorldCom and Verizon had agreed to 
treat ISP-bound calls as local traffic subject to 
reciprocal compensation. 

Verizon filed an action in the United States District 
Court for the District of Maryland, citing 47 U.S.C. 5 
252kM61 and 28 U.S.C, .B 1331 as the basis for 
jurisdiction, and naming as defendants the 
Commission, its individual members in their oficid 
capacities, WorldCom, and other competing LECs. In 
its complaint, Verizon sought declaratory and 
injunctive relief from the Commission's order, 
alleging that the determination that Verizon must pay 
reciprocal compensation to WorIdCom for ISP traffic 
violated the 1996 Act and the FCC ruling. 

*4 The District Court dismissed the action, and a 
divided panel of the Court of Appeals for the Fourth 
Circuit afTb"d. 240 E3d 279 IC.A.4 2001). The 
Fourth Circuit held that the Commission had not 
waived its imrnUnity from suit by voluntarily 
participating in the regulatory scheme set up under 
the 1996 Act, and that the doctrine of Ex parte 
Young, 209 US. 123, 28 S.Ct. 441. 52 L.Ed. 714 

(19081, does not permit suit against the individual 
commissioners in their official capacities. It then held 
that neither 47 U.S.C. 6 252(eM6) nor 28 U.S.C. p 
- 1331 provides a basis for jurisdiction over Verizon's 
claims agaitist the private defendants. Both Verizon 
and the United States, an intervenor below, petitioned 
this Court for review of the four questions resolved 
by the Fourth Circuit. Because we had previously 
granted certiorari in Mathias v. WorldCom 
Technologies, Irzc.. 532 U.S. 903. 121 S.Ct. 1224, 
149 L.Ed.2d 135 12001), which raised all but the 
question whether 5 1331 provides a basis for 
jurisdiction, we granted certiorari only on the 5 1331 
question and set the case for oral argument in tandem 
with Mathias. 533 W.S. 928, 121 S.Ct .  2548, 150 
L.Ed.2d 715 (2001). After oral argument, for reasons 
explained in our decision in Maihias released today, 
--- U.S. ----, --- s,a. ----, --- L",W ----, 2002 WL 
1008881, we granted certiorari on ~e remaining 
three questions presented in these cases. 534 U S  
1072.122 S.Ct. 679,151 L.Ed.2.d 591 (2001). 

IT 

WorldCom, Verizon, and the United States contend 
that 47 U.S.C. 4 2521eM61 and 28 U.S.C. Ej 1331 
independently grant federal courts subject-matter 
jurisdiction to determine whether the Conmission's 
order requiring that Verizon pay WorldCom 
reciprocal compensation for ISP-bound calls violates 
the 1996 Act. Section 252 sets forth procedures 
relating to formation and commission approval of 
interconnection agreements, and commission 
approval and continuing review of interconnection 
terms and conditions (called "[s]tatements of 
generally available terms," 4 252(f1) filed by LECs. 
Section 252(e)(61 provides, in relevant pat: "In any 
case in which a State commission makes a 
determination under this section, any party aggrieved 
by such determination may bring an action in an 
appropriate Federal district court to determine 
whether the agreement or statement meets the 
requirements of section 251 of this title and this 
section." The determination at issue here is neither 
the approval or disapproval of a negotiated agreement 
nor the approvaI or disapproval of a statement of 
generally available k m .  WorldCom, Verizon, and 
the United States argue, however, that a state 
commission's authority under 4 252 implicitly 
encompasses the authority to interpret and enforce an 
hkrcomection agreement that the commission has 
approved,_TFN21 and that an interpretation or 
enforcement decision is therefore a "determination 
under [§ 2521" subject to federal review. Whether 
the text of 4 252(eM61 can be so construed is a 
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question we need not decide. For we agree with the 
parties' alternative contention, that even if 8 
2521eM6) does not confer jurisdiction, it at least does 
not divest the district courts of their authority under 
28 U.S.C. is 1331 to review the Commission's order 
for compliance with federal law. 

FN2. The Fourth Cicuit suggested that both 
Maryland law and the Federal 
Communications Act of 1934 grant the 
Commission authority to interpret and 
enforce interconnection agreements that it 
approves under 4 252. 240 F.3d 279, 304 
(C.A.4 2001) (citing 47 U.S.C. 4 152(bL 
and Md. Pub. Util. Cos.Code Ann. 6 2-113 
(1998)). The parties dispute whether it is in 
fact federal or state law that confers this 
authority, but no party contends that the 
Commission lacked jurisdiction to interpret 
and enforce the agreement. 

Verizon alleged in its complaint that the 
Commission violated the Act and the FCC ruling 
when it ordered payment of reciprocal compensation 
for ISP-bound calls. Verizon sought a declaratory 
judgment that the Commission's order was unlawful, 
and an injunction prohibiting its enforcement. We 
have no doubt that federal courts have jurisdiction 
under 5 1331 to entertain such a suit. Verizon seeks 
relief from the Commission's order "on the ground 
that such regulation is pre-empted by a federal statute 
which, by virtue of the Supremacy Clause of the 
Constitution, must prevail," and its claim "thus 
presents a federal question which the federal courts 
have jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. 6 1331 to resolve." 
Shaw v. Delta Air Lines, Inc.. 463 U.S. 85, 96, n. 14, 
103 S.Ct. 2890.77 L.Ed.2d490 (19831. 

*5 The Commission contends that since the Act does 
not create a private cause of action to challenge the 
Commission's order, there is no jurisdiction to 
entertain such a suit. We need express no opinion on 
the premise of this argument. "It is firmly established 
in our cases that the absence of a valid (as opposed to 
arguable) cause of action does not implicate subject- 
matter jurisdiction, Le., the court's statutory or 
ConstitutionaI power to adjudicate the case." Steel Co. 
v. Citizens for Better Environment. 523 US. 83, 89, 
118 S.Ct. 1003.140 L.Ed.2d 210 (1998). As we have 
said, "the district court has jurisdiction if 'the right of 
the petitioners to recover under their complaint will 
be sustained if the Constitution and laws of the 
United States are given one construction and will be 

defeated if they are given another,' unless the claim 
'clearly appears to be immaterial and made solely for 
the purpose of obtaining jurisdiction or where such a 
claim is wholly insubstantial and frivolous.' " Ibid. 
(citation omitted). Here, resolution of Verizon's claim 
turns on whether the Act, or an FCC ruling issued 
thereunder, precludes the Commission from ordering 
payment of reciprocal cornpensation, and there is no 
suggestion that Verizon's claim is I' 'immaterial' I' or 'I 
'wholly insubstantial and frivolous.' " Ibid. 

Verizon's claim thus falls within 28 U.S.C. 5. 
1331's general grant of jurisdiction, and contrary to 
the Fourth Circuit's conclusion, nothing in 47 U.S.C. 
5 2521eM1 purports to strip this jurisdiction. Section 
252(eX6) provides for federal review of an agreement 
when a state commission "makes a determination 
under 2521." If this does not include (as 
WorldCom, Verizon, and the United States claim it 
does) the interpretation, or enforcement of an 
interconnection agreement, then 5 252(e)(6) merely 
makes Some other actions by state commissions 
reviewable in federal court. This is not enough to 
eliminate jurisdiction under 5 1331. Although the 
situation is not precisely parallel (in that here the 
elimination of federal district-court review would not 
amount to the elimination of all review), we think 
what we said in Abbott Laboratories v. Gardnwr, 387 
U.S. 136. 141,87 S.Ct. 1507,18 L.Ed.2d 681 (19672 
is nonetheless apt: "?.'he mere fact that some acts are 
made reviewable should not suffice to support an 
implication of exclusion as to others." (Internal 
quotation marks and citation omitted). And here there 
is nothing more than that mere fact. Section 252 does 
not establish a distinctive review mechanism for the 
commission actions that it covers (the mechanism is 
the same as 5 1331: district-court review), and it 
does not distinctiveIy limit the substantive relief 
available. Cf. United Staes a'. Fausto. 484 U.S. 439, 

Indeed, it does not even mention subject-matter 
jurisdiction, but reads like the conferral of a private 
right of action ("[Ajny party aggrieved by such 
determination may bring an action in an appropriate 
Federal district court," 3 2521eM)). Cf. Steel Co.. 
supra at 90-91. 118 SCt. 1003 (even a statutory 
provision that uses the word "jurisdiction" may not 
relate to "subject-matter jurisdiction"); see also Davis 
v. Passman. 4-42 US. 228,239, n. 18.99 S.Ct. 2264, 
60 L.Ed.2d 846 (1979). 

448-449, 108 S . 0 .  668, 98 L.Ed.26 830 (1988). 

And finally, none of the other provisions of the Act 
evince any intent to preclude federal review of a 
commission determination. If anything, they 
reinforce the conclusion that 4 252(e)(6)'s silence on 
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the subject leaves the jurisdictional grant of 3 1331 
untouched. For where otherwise applicable 
jurisdiction was meant to be excluded, it was 
excluded expressly, Section 2521eY4) provides: "No 
State court shall have jurisdiction to review the action 
of a State commission in approving or rejecting an 
agreement under this section." La sum, nothing in the 
Act displays any intent to withdraw federal 
jurisdiction under -1331; we will not presume that 
the statute means what it neither says nor fairly 
implies. TFN31 

- FN3. The Commission also suggests that the 
Rnoker-Feldman doctrine precludes a 
federal district court from exercising 
jurisdiction over Verizon's claim. See 
District of Columbia Court of Atweds v. 
Feldman. 460 U.S. 462, 103 S . 0 .  1303,75 
L.Ed.2d 206 (1983); Rooker v. Fidd iv  Tmst 
Co.. 263 U.S. 413, 44 S.Ct .  149, 68 L.Ed. 
362 (19232. The Rooker-Feldman doctrine 
merely recognizes tbat 28 W.S.C. S 1331 is 
a grant of original jurisdiction, and does not 
authorize district courts to exercise appellate 
jurisdiction over state-court judgments, 
which Congress has reserved to this Court, 
see 28 U.S.C. 6 1257(a). The doctrine has 
no application to judicial review of 
executive action, including determinations 
made by a state administrative agency. 

m 
*6 The Commission nonetheless contends that the 
Eleventh Amendment bars Verizon's claim against it 
and its individual commissioners. WoddCom, 
Verizon, and the United States counter that the 
Commission is subject to suit because it voluntarily 
participated in the regulatory regime established by 
the Act. Whether the Commission waived its 
immunity is another question we need not decide, 
because--as the same parties also argue-even absent 
waiver, Verizon may proceed against the individual 
commissioners in their official capacities, pursuant to 
the doctrine of Ex t?arte Younn, 209 U.S. 123, 28 
S.Ct. 441.52 L.Ed. 714 rl908). 

J21f31 In determining whether the docsine of 
parte Younn avoids an Eleventh Amendment bar to 
suit, a court need only conduct a "straightforward 
inquiry into whether [the] complaint alleges an 
ongoing violation of federal law and seeks relief 
properly characterized as prospective." Idaho v. 

Coelsr d'Alene Tribe of Idaho. 521 US. 261.296.117 
SCt. 2028,138 L.Ed.2d 438 (1997) (O'CONNOR, J., 
joined by SCALIA and THOMAS, JJ., concurring in 
part and concurring in judgment); see also id.. at 298- 
299, 117 S.Ct. 2028 (SOWER, J., dissenting, joined 
by STEVENS, GINSBURG, and BREYER, JJ.). 
Here Verizon sought injunctive and declaratory 
relief, alleging that the Commission's order requiring 
payment of reciprocal compensation was pre-empted 
by the 1996 Act and an FCC ruling. The prayer for 
injunctive refief--that state officials be restrained 
from enforcing an order in contravention of 
controlling federal law--clearly satisfies our 
"straightforward inquiry." We have approved 
injunction suits against state regulatory 
commissioners in like contexts. See, e.g,, Prentis v. 
Atlantic Coast Line eo., 21 1 U.S. 210, 230. 29 S.0. 
67.53 L.Ed. 150 W ) 8 )  ("[when the rate is fixed a 
bill against the commission to restrain the members 
from enforcing it will not be bad ... as a suit against a 
State, and will be the proper form of remedy"); 
Alabama Pub, Sew. Cornrn'n v. Southem R Co., 341 
U.S. 341, 344, n. 4. 71 S.Ct.  762, 95 L.Ed. 1002 
J19511; McNeill 17. Southern R. Co., 202 US. 543, 26 
S.Ct. 722, 50 L.Ed. 1142 J1906); Smvth v. Anzes. 169 
U.S. 466, 18 S.Ct. 418.42 L.Ed. 819 (1898); Reanan 
17. Fumzers'Loai2 & Trust Co., 154 U.S. 362, 14 S.Ct. 
1047.38 L.Ed. 1014 11894). Indeed, Ex Dane Young 
itself was a suit against state officials (including state 
utility commissioners, though only the state attorney 
general appealed), to enjoin enforcement of a railroad 
commission's order requiring a reduction in rates. 209 
U.S.. at 129.28 S.Ct. 4-41. As for Verizon's prayer for 
declaratory relief: That, to be sure, seeks a 
declaration of the past? as well as the future7 
ineffectiveness of the Commission's action, so that 
the past financial liability of private parties may be 
affected. But no past liability of the State, or of any 
of its co"issioners, is at issue. It does not impose 
upon the State "a monetary loss resulting from a past 
breach of a legal duty on the part of the defendant 
state officials." Edelman 1'. Jordun. 415 U.S. 651, 
668,94 S.Ct. 1347,39 L.Ed.2d 662 (1974). Insofar as 
the exposure of the State is concerned, the prayer for 
declaratory relief adds nothing to the prayer for 
injunction. 

The Fourth C i c ~ &  suggested that Verizon's 
claim could not be brought under Ex  am Yuunp, 
because the Commission's order was probably not 
inconsistent with federal law after all. 240 E3d, at 
295-297. The court noted that i%e FCC ruling relied 
upon by Verizon does not seem to require 
compensation for ISP traffic; that the Court of 
Appeals for the D.C. Circuit has vacated the ruling; 
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and that the Commission interpreted the 
interconnection agreement under state contract-law 
principles. It m y  (or may not) be true that the FCC's 
since-vacated nrling does not support Verizon's 
claim; it may (or may not) also be true that state 
contract law, and not federal law as Verizon 
contencis, applies to disputes regarding the 
interpretation of Verizon's agreement. But the inquiry 
into whether suit lies under Exparte Youan does not 
include an analysis of the merits of the claim. See 
Coeur d'Alene, supra at 281, 117 S.Ct. 2028 (''An 
allegation of an ongoing violation of federal law ... is 
ordinarily sufficient" (emphasis added)). 

"7 Nor does the 1994 Act display. any intent to 
foreclose jurisdiction under & D a m  Young--as we 
concluded the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act did in 
Serninule Tribe of Fla. v. Florida. 517 US. 44. 116 
S.Ct. 11 14, 134 L.Ed.2d 252 (19961. There an Indian 
Tribe sued the State of Florida for violating a duty to 
negotiate imposed under that Act, 25 U.S.C. § 
2710(dM3). Congress had specified the means to 
enforce that duty in 4 271O(dM7), a provision 
"intended ... not only to define, but also to limit 
significantly, the duty imposed by 4 2710fd)(3)." 
517 U.S., at 74, 116 S.Ct. 1114. The "intricate 
procedures set forth in that provision" prescribed that 
a court could issue an order directing the State to 
negotiate, that it could require the State to submit to 
mediation, and that it could order that the Secretary 
of the Interior be notified. Id., at 74-75, 116 S.Ct. 
I_ 1114. We concluded that "this quite modest set of 
sanctions" displayed an inntent not to provide the 
"more complete and more immediate relief' that 
would otherwise be available under Ex parte Younn. 
517 U.S.. at 75.134 S.Ct. 1714. Pen-nitting suit under 
Ex parte Young was thus inconsistent with the 
"detailed remedial scheme," 517 U.S.. at 74. 11.6 
SCt. 11 14--and the Limited one--that Congress had 
prescribed to enforce the State's statutory duty to 
negotiate. The Commission's argument that 5 
2SXeM6) constitutes a detailed and exclusive 
remedial scheme iike the one in Seminole Tribe, 
implicitly excluding Ex parte Younq actions, is 
without merit. That section provides only that when 
state commissions make certain "det"tions," an 
aggrieved party may bring suit in federal court to 
establish compliance with the requirements of 
- 251 and 252. Even with regard to the 
"determinations" that it covers, it places no restriction 
on the relief a court can award. And it does not even 
say whom the suit is to be brought against--the state 
commission, the individuai commissioners, or the 
carriers benefiting from the state commission's order. 
The mere fact that Congress has authorized federal 

courts to review whether the Commission's action 
complies with j 4 251 and 252 does not without 
more "impose upon the State a liability that is 
significantly more limited than would be the liability 
imposed upon the state officer under Ex narte 
Younp." Seminole Tribe. supra, at 75-76, 116 S.Ct. 
- 11 14. 

* * *  
"8 We conclude that 28 U.S.C. 6 1331 provides a 

basis for jurisdiction over Verizon's claim that the 
Commission's order requiring reciprocal 
compensation for ISP-bound calls is pre-empted by 
federal law. We also conclude fhat the doctrine of 
parte Younn permits Verizon's suit to go forward 
against the state commissioners in their official 
capacities. We vacate the judgment of the Court of 
Appeals and remand these cases for further 
proceedings consistent with this opinion. 

It is so ordered. 

Justice O'CONNOR took no part in the consideration 
or decision of these cases. 

Justice KENNEDY, concurring. 

For the reasons well stated by the Court, I agree 
Verizon Maryland Inc. may proceed against the state 
commissioners in their official capacity under the 
doctrine of Ex parte Younn, 209 U.S. 123, 28 S.Ct. 
442.52 L.Ed. 714 11908). When the plaintiff seeks to 
enjoin a state utility commissioner from enforcing an 
order alleged to violate federal law, the Eleventh 
kmendment poses no bar. See Idaho v. Coeur 
d'Afme Tribe of kfaho, 521 US. 261, 271. 11 7 S C t .  
2028. 138 L.Ed.2d 438 (1997) (principal opinion of 
KENNEDY, J., joined by REHNQUIST, C. J.). 

This is unlike the case in Idaho v. Coeur d'Alene 
Tribe qf Idoho. sunru, where the plaintiffs tried to use 
Ex parfe Young to divest a State of sovereignty over 
territory within its boundaries. In such a case, a 
"straightforward inquiry," which the Court endorses 
here, ante, at -- 9, proves more complex. ]In Coeur 
d'AEene seven Members of this Court described 
parte Youna as requiring nothing more than an 
allegation of an ongoing violation of federal law and 
a request for prospective relief; they divided four to 
three, however, over whether that deceptively simple 
test had been met. 
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In my view, our Ex mrte Young jurisprudence 
requires careful consideration of the sovereign 
interests of the State as well as the obligations of 
state officials to respect the supremacy of federal law. 
See Coeur d'AEene, supra, at 267-280, I17 S.Ct. 2028 
(principal opinion of KENNEDY, J., joined by 
REHNQUIST, C. J.). I believe tbis approach, 
whether stated in express tem or not, is the path 
followed in Coeur dxlerze as well as in the many 
cases preceding it. I also believe it necessary. Were it 
otherwise, the Eleventh Amendment, and not & 
parte Young, would become the legal fiction. 

The complaint in this case, however, parallels the 
very suit permitted by 2% parte Younn itself. With 
this brief explanation, I join the opinion of the Court. 

Justice SOuTER. with whom Justice GINSBURG 
and Justice BREYER join, concurring. 

I join the Court's opinion, Part III of which rests on a 
ground all of us can agree upon: TFNll on the 
assumption of an Eleventh Amendment rFN21 bar, 
relief is available under the doctrine of Ex uarte 
Yourza. 209 U.S. 123. 28 S.Ct. 441, 52 L.Ed. 714 
519082. Although that assumption apparently has 
been made from the start of the litigation, I think it is 
open to some doubt and so write separately to 
question whether these cases even implicate the 
Eleventh Amendment. 

- FNl . In so doing, I set aside for the moment 
my continuing conviction that the 
interpretation of the Eleventh Amendment 
that a majority of this Court has embraced is 
fundamentally mistaken. See Alden v. 
Muine, 527 U.S. 706, 760, 1 19 S.Ct. 2240, 
I44 L.Ed.2d 636 (19991 (dissenting 
opinion); Seminole Tribe of Flu. v. Florida, 
517 U.S. 44, 100, 116 S.Ct .  1314, 134 
L.Ed.2d 252 (1 996) (dissenting opinion). 

FN2. "The Judicial power of the United 
States shall not be construed to extend to 
any suit in law or equity, commenced or 
prosecuted against one of the United States 
by Citizens of another State, or by Citizens 
or Subjects of any Foreign State." U.S. 
Const., Amdt. 11. 

*9 While the State of Maryland is the named 

defendant, it is only a nominal one. Verizon 
Maryland Inc., the private party "suing" it, does not 
seek money damages, or the sort of declaratory or 
injunctive relief that could be had against a private 
litigant. TFN31 Nor does Verizon seek an order 
enjoining the State from enforcing purely state-law 
rate orders of dubious constitutionality, the relief 
requested in Ex rzam Youn. itself, 209 U.S., at 129- 
13 1. 28 S.Ct. 441, Instead, Verizon claims that the 
Maryland Public Service Commission has wrongly 
decided a question of federal law under a 
decisional power conferred by the 
Telecommunications Act of 1996(Act), a power that 
no person may wield. Verizon accordingly seeks not 
a simple order of relief running against the state 
commission, but a different adjudication of a federal 
question by means of appellate review in Federal 
District Court, rFN5l whose jurisdiction to entertain 
the claim of error the Court: today has affirmed. If the 
District Court should see things Verizon's way and 
reverse the state commission qua federal regulator, 
what dishonor would be done to the dignity of the 
State, which has accepted congressionally conferred 
power to decide matters of federal law in the first 
instance? 

- FW3. Compare, e.g., h a r d  of Trustees of 
Univ. ofAla. v. Garren. 531 US. 356, 360, 
121 S . 0 .  955. 148 L.Ed.2d 866 12001) 
(money damages fiom the State as employer 
under Title I of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act of 1990); Kim2 v. Frloridu 
Bd. qfRegents, 528 U.S. 62. 66, 120 S.Ct. 
631. 145 L.Ed.2d 522 (2000) (money 
damages from the State as employer under 
the Age Discrimination in Employment Act 
of 1967); Alden v. Maine, supra, at 722, 1 19 
S.Ct. 2240 (money damages from the State 
as employer under the Fair Labor Standards 
Act of 1938 in state court); Floridu Prepaid 
Postsecondary Ed. E-mense Bd v. College 
Suvings Bank. 527 U.S. 627. 633. 119 S.Ct. 
2199. 144 L.Ed.2d 575 (1999) (money 
damages and injunctive and declaratory 
relief against a State for patent 
infringement); College Savinas Bank 17. 

Floridu Prepaid Postsecondarv Ed. Erpense 
Bd., 527 U.S. 666, 671. 119 S.Ct. 2219, 144 
L.Ed.2d 605 (1999) (same for trademark 
violations); Seminole Tribe, supra, at 47, 
116 SCt. 1114 (suit to compel State to 
negotiate in good faith); Hans 17. Louisiana, 
134 U.S. 1. 10 S.Ct. 504, 33 L.Ed. 842 
51890) (money damages for failure to honor 
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state securities). In Seminole Tribe, a 
majority of this Court observed "that the 
relief sought by a plaintiff suing a State is 
irrelevant to the question whether the suit is 
barred by the Eleventh Amendment," 517 
US..  at 58, 116 S.Ct. 1114, but this was said 
in the context of a suit for injunctive relief 
(to enforce a duty to negotiate) as opposed 
to money damages. My point is that 
conventional relief of both sorts (and 
declaratory relief) is different in kind from 
the judicial review of agency action sought 
in these cases. 

- FN4. Whether the interpretation of a 
reciprocal-compensation provision in a 
privately negotiated interconnection 
agreement presents a federal issue is a 
different question which neither the Court 
nor I address at the present. 

FN5. Judicial review of FCC determinations 
under the Act is committed directly to the 
Courts of Appeal. 28 U.S.C. 6 234X1); a 
U.S.C. 6 402(a) (1994 ed.). 

One answer might be that even naming the state 
commission as a defendant in a suit for declaratory 
and injunctive reLief in federal court is an 
unconstitutional indignity. But I do not see how tbis 
could be right. At least where the suit does not seek 
to bar a state authority from applying and enforcing 
state law, a request for declaratory or injunctive relief 
is simply a formality for obtaining a process of 
review. Cf. 4 K. Davis, Administrative Law Treatise 
206 (26 ed. 1983) ("mhe suit for injunction and 
declaratory judgment in a district court under 28 
U.S.C. B 1331 ... is now always available to reach 
reviewable [federal] administrative action in absence 
of a specific statute making some other remedy 
exclusive"). And as for the nominal position of a 
State as defendant, "[i]t must be regarded as a settled 
doctrine of this court ... 'that the question whether a 
suit is within the prohibition of the 11th Amendment 
is not always determined by reference to the nominal 
parties on the record.' 'I In re Ayers. 123 U.S. 443, 
487, 8 S.Ct. 164. 31 L.Ed. 216 (18871 (alteration in 
original) (quoting Poindmer v. Greenhow. 114 U.S. 
270, 287. 5 S.Ct .  903, 29 L.Ed. 185 ClSS51). If the 
applicability of the Eleventh Amendment pivots on 
the formalism that a State is found on the wrong side 
of the "v." in the case name of a regulatory appeal, 

constitutional immunity becomes nothing more than 
an accident of captioning practice in utility cases 
reviewed by courts. For that matter, the formal and 
nominal position of a governmental body in these 
circumstances is not even the universal practice. 
While the regulatory commission is generally a 
nominal defendant when a party appeals in the 
federal system, IF'N6I this is not the unifonxl practice 
among the States, several of which caption utility 
cases on judicial review in terms of the appealing 
utility. T F N ~  

- FN6. See 5 U.S.C. 4 4 702-703; Fed. Rule 
ADD. Proc. 1 S(aX2MB). 

FN7. See, e.g., In re Hawaiian Electric Cu., 
81 Hawai'i 459, 918 P.2d 561 (1996); In re 
Petition of Interstate Power Cq.. 416 
N.W.2d 800 (Minn.Ct.Au~.1987); &peal o_f 
Campainn for Ratepavers Rights, 145 N.H. 
671.766 A.2d 702 (2001); In re Petition for 
Declaratory Riding of Northwestern Public 
Service Co., 560 N.W.2d 925 (S.D.1997); &z 
re Citizens Utilities Go., 171 Vt. 447. 769 
A.2d 19 (2000'). 

The only credible response, which Maryland to its 
credit advances, is that the State has a strong interest 
in any case where its adjudication of a federal 
question is challenged. TWXI See Supplemental Brief 
for Respondents 21-24. An adverse ruling in one 
appeal can no doubt affect the state commission's 
ruling in Euture cases. But this is true any time a state 
court decides a federal question and a successful 
appeal is made to this Court, and no one thinks that 
the Eleventh Amendment applies in that instance. See 
Cahens Y .  VirRinia, 6 Wheat. 264, 412, 5 L.Ed. 257 
J18211 (a writ of error from a state- court decision is 
not a "suit" under the Eleventh Amendment); 
McKesson C o y .  17. Division of  Alcoholic BeverizPes 
and Tobacco. Flu. De-ot, ef Business Regulation, 496 
U.S. 18. 31, 110 S.Ct. 2238. 110 L.Ed.2d 17 (1990) 
("The Eleventh Amendment does not constrain the 
appellate jurisdiction of the Supreme Court over 
cases arising from state courts") (unanimous Court); 
cf. U.S. Const., Art. VI ("This Constitution, and the 
Laws of the United States ... shall be the supreme 
Law of the Land"). TFN91 Whether an issue comes 
from a state-agency or a state-court decision, the 
federal court is reviewing the State's determination of 
a question of federal law, and it is neither prudent nor 
natural to see such review as impugning the dignity 
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of the State or implicating the States' sovereign 
immunity in the federal system. 

conge ssional abrogation, which presumes 
that States may be sued in federal District 
Court: in the first instance when Congress 
properly so provides, see Seminole Tribe, 

FNS. The Fourtb Circuit obliquely 517 U.S.. at 55. 116 S.Ct. 1114. 
questioned the strength of the State's 
interest, noting that "under Maryland law, it 
is not necessary for the State commission, 
much less the individual commissioners, to 
be a party to an appeal for State-court 
review of its determinations." Bell Atlantic 
Md., Inc. v. MCI Worldcom. Inc., 240 F.3d 
279, 295 (2001). But while the Maryland 
statute which the Fourth Circuit cited, Md. 

(1998), does provide that "[tlhe Commission 
may," not must, "be a party to an appeal," 
the Maryland courts have specified that the 
Public Service Commission is one of certain 
agencies " 'the functions of which are so 
identified with the execution of some 
definite public policy as the representative 
of the State, that their participation in 
litigation affecting their decisions is 
regarded by the Legislature as essential to 
the adequate protection of the State's 
interests.' " Calvert County Planning 
Cumm'rz v. Howlin Realiv Management, 
Znc., 364 Md. 301, 315, 772 k 2 d  1209, 
1216-1217 (2001) (quoting Zoning Appeals 
Board v. McKinnev, 174 Md. 551. 561. 199 
A. 540, 545 (19383). 

END OF DOCUMENT 

Pub. Util. COS.COde Ann. 8 3-204(d) 

FN9. A possible ground for distinction is 
that the Supreme Court reviews state-court 
decisions while a Federal District Court 
initially reviews state-commission decisions 
under the Act. The argument would be that 
the Constitution requires any controversy in 
which a State's dignitaq interests are 
implicated to be decided by this Court, and 
no other federal court, as a sign of respect 
for the State's sovereignty. See Farquhar v. 
Georgia (C.C. D.Ga.1791) (Iredell, J.), 
reprinted in 5 Documentary History of the 
Supreme Court of the United States, 1789- 
1800, pp. 148-154 (M. Marcus ed. 1994). ("It 
may also fairly be presumed that the several 
States thought it important to stipulate that 
so awful [and] important a Trial [to which a 
State is party] should not be cognizable in 
any Court but the Supreme"). But this 
position has long been rejected and is 
inconsistent with the doctrine of 
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